
 

 

 
STA/STPA/STSC 

GOVERNING BOARD/SAC 
MEMBER PACKET  

REGULAR MEETING  
February 11, 2021 

 
 
 
 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

SouthTech Success Center, Inc.  

 
 

Carla Lovett, Executive Director 
Eileen Turenne, STA High School Principal 

Nicole Handy, STPA Middle School Principal 
 

 
 



SOUTHTECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. 

SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY, INC. 

SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER, INC. 

STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

February 11, 2021 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Opening of Meeting 

a. Call to Order 

b. Pledge of Allegiance 

c. Roll Call 

Roger Dunson          Ayesha Edmond Russell Feldman 

Christina Grenga Dan Heller  Diane Heinz   

Robert Kesten  Suzanne Nicolini James Notter 

d. Open Meeting Act Statement 

 

2. Approval of the Minutes for the STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Regular Meeting 

January 14, 2020. 

 

3. Reports 

a. Treasurer’s/Financial Report – Dan Heller 

b. Executive Director – Carla Lovett 

c. SouthTech Academy Principal – Eileen Turenne 

d. SouthTech Preparatory Academy Principal – Nicole Handy 

e. Committees/Special Reports 

 

4. Public Comments on Agenda Items – Five (5) Minutes Maximum Each Person 

 

5. SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda 

a. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH ACADEMY:  

Old Business    

  None. 

Administrative Items 

              A-1 I recommend that the Board approve the donations for the period from December  

  9, 2020 to January 31, 2021. 

              Personnel Items  

               B-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous  

   month. 

                  Financial Items  

              C-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements  

  for the month ending December 31, 2020 as required by the Sponsor.  

              C-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the SouthTech Schools  

 Holdings, LLC Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Report for month ending 

December 31, 2020. 

               C-3 I recommend that the Board approve the proposed salary increases. 

  C-4 I recommend that the Board approve a contract with MAC Express  

   Cleaning Services for cleaning services at SouthTech Academy. 
 Emergency Items 

None. 



b. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 

c. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled 

d. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item)  

 

6. SouthTech Preparatory Academy Consent Agenda 

a. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY: 

Old Business 

  None. 

  Administrative Items  
              PA-1 I recommend that the Board approve the donations for the period from January 1,  

  2021 to January 31, 2021. 

               Personnel Items  

 PB-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous  

   month. 

Financial Items 
              PC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements  

  for the month ending December 31, 2020 as required by the Sponsor.  

              PC-2 I recommend that the Board approve the proposed salary increases. 
 Emergency Items 

None. 

b. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 

c. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled 

d. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item)  

 

7. SouthTech Success Center Consent Agenda 

a. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER  

Old Business 

  None. 

  Administrative Items  

              None. 

               Personnel Items  

 None. 

Financial Items 

               None. 

 Emergency Items 

None. 

 

8. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – Five (5) Minutes Maximum Each Person  

 

9. Board Comments  

 

10. Motion to Adjourn 

 

 



SOUTHTECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. 

SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY, INC. 

SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER, INC. 

STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2021 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
1. Call to Order at 7:09 pm. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call – Ayesha Edmond, Board Secretary   

Present: Roger Dunson, Ayesha Edmond, Russell Feldman, Dan Heller, Diane Heinz, Robert  

 Kesten, Suzanne Nicolini and James Notter 

 Absent:  None 

Quorum Confirmed       
4. Open Meeting Act Statement: Board Clerk confirmed that proper public notice has been made. 

5. Approval of the Minutes for the STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Regular Meeting December 10, 

2020. 

Motion: Russell Feldman   Second: Suzanne Nicolini 

All in favor. Motion carries. 

6. Nominating Committee 

a. The Nominating Committee recommends Christina Grenga to the STA/STPA Governing Board of 

Directors. 

b. Motion to accept Christina Grenga to the Board of Directors: Suzanne Nicolini 

Second: James Notter 

All in favor. Motion carries. 

c. Ms. Grenga was also appointed to the Finance Committee by Mr. Kesten. 

7. Treasurer’s/Financial Report for STA/STPA/STSC – Dan Heller, Treasurer 

The Finance Committee met earlier this evening and recommends for Board Approval Items C-1 through 

C-6, PC-1 through PC-4, and SCC-1 through SCC-2. Also discussed at the Committee meeting were 

financial strategies aimed to keep SouthTech Schools fiscally successful in the future. 

8. Reports 

a. Executive Director – Carla Lovett 

o Getting settled and learning more about the organization and its processes and 

procedures 

o Holding one on one meetings with staff 

o Beginning to look at finances with Ms. McInerney and Ms. DeKalb 

1. Reserves 

2. Budget for SY22 

o Invitation to Board members to meet one on one at their convenience 

b. SouthTech Academy Principal – Eileen Turenne 

o STA Successes 

1. Dwyer Award Nominees – Donna Sanders and Cathy Sweeney 

2. Holiday Feast 

3. Annalyn Cooper – C/O 2020 recently earned the rank of Eagle Scout 

4. Brandon Copeland virtual webinar 

o Palm Tran Connection donated 3 buses 

o National School Choice Week – January 25th-29th  

o Testing Update 

o Distance Learning 

1. Intent to Return Survey # 3 Results 

2. Parent Emergency Order Notification Letter 

o Class of 2020 Official Graduation Rate = 96.3% 

o Graduation Date 

1. Class of 2021 graduation will be held in person at the South Florida Fairgrounds 

on June 16, 2021 at 8:00 pm 



2. SDPBC Disclaimer: Although the School District of Palm Beach County hopes 

students will be able to attend graduation ceremonies in person, the decision 

regarding the format for these ceremonies will be announced in the Spring of 

2021. This decision will be based on the most recent CDC, local, and state 

health department guidelines and recommendations. 

c. SouthTech Preparatory Academy Principal – Nicole Handy 

o Testing Update 

o Distance Learning 

1. Intent to Return Survey # 3 Results 

2. Parent Emergency Order Notification Letter 

o National School Choice Week – January 25th-29th  

o Virtual Parent Training Night – February 17th  

o Virtual Recruitment Night (TBD) 

o Color Brave 

1. Racial Equity PLC February 1st  

o Open teaching positions 

d. Committees 

o Transition Report – Steven Kozak, Business Development Manager 

1. Status of the move into the new building 

a. Wharton Smith punch list now complete 

b. Internet is up and running around the campus 

c. Kitchen issues 

2. Building 6 Update 

a. Gas line to be hooked up next week 

b. Paint booth and lifts/safety gear  

c. Hunter equipment installed   

i. First training session on our campus should begin in early 

February 

d. Lighting 

3. Website Update 

4. Kimmel Family Foundation 

5. Teddy Morse visit 

🡪    Mrs. Heinz requested a list of the donors Mr. Kozak is already working with 

to avoid duplication 

9. Public Comments on Agenda Items – None. 

10. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH ACADEMY  

Old Business    

 None. 

Administrative Items 

              A-1 I recommend that the Board approve the donations for the period from December 1, 2020 to 

December 13, 2020. 

              Personnel Items  

              B-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Assistant Paraprofessional. 

                     Financial Items  

C-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school bank account reconciliation 

for month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 

              C-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  

 Disbursement Report for the month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 

              C-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for the month 

ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor.  

 C-4 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC 

bank account reconciliation for month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 

 C-5 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC monthly 

Disbursement Reports for the month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 



              C-6 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC Balance 

Sheet and Profit & Loss Report for month ending November 30, 2020. 

              Emergency Items 

None. 

11. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions – None. 

12. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled  

Motion: Dan Heller  Second: Diane Heinz 

All in favor. Motion carries. 

13. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 

14. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – None. 

15. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY 

Old Business 

 None. 

 Administrative Items  

              None. 

               Personnel Items  

 PB-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Assistant Paraprofessional  

 PB-2 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous month. 

Financial Items 
PC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school bank account reconciliation 

for the month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 

           PC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  

 Disbursement Report for the month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 

              PC-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for the month 

ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor.  

              PC-4 I recommend that the Board approve the nightly cleaning agreement with M&T Cleaning Solutions.   

 Emergency Items 

None. 

16. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 

a. PB-1 was pulled by Mr. Feldman 

17. Approval of SouthTech Preparatory Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled:  

Motion: James Notter  Second: Russell Feldman 

All in favor. Motion carries. 

18. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item)  

a. Motion to approve Item PB-1 by Russell Feldman Second: Diane Heinz 

b. Discussion: Mr. Feldman wanted to know what the difference is between an Assistant Paraprofessional 

and a Paraprofessional. Mrs. Melillo explained that this was the description from the District. No 

further questions or comments. 

c. Vote: All in favor. Motion carries. 

19. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – None.  

20. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER  

Old Business    

 None. 

None. 

              Personnel Items  

 None. 

                     Financial Items  
SCC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school bank account reconciliation 

for the month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 

           SCC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  

 Disbursement Report for the month ending November 30, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 

              Emergency Items 

None. 

21. Poll the Board for Items to be Pulled – Dan Heller pulled PC-1 for comments only, okay to approve 

as is. 

22. Approval of SouthTech Success Center Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled 



Motion: James Notter  Second: Russell Feldman 

All in favor. Motion carries. 

23. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) 

PC-1 - Mr. Heller: This is still an open item as we are waiting to hear back from the auditor/sponsor if 

there will need to be an audit as there were minimal transactions in account as evidenced by statements. If 

not, then they can close the account and move it over. Will provide an update once they know more. 

24. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – None. 

25. GOVERNING BOARD IN THE CAPACITY OF SCHOOL ADVISORY  

            COUNCIL (SAC)   

South Tech Academy:                

School Improvement Steering Committee (SISC) Report – Suzanne Nicolini, Chairperson 

● Industry certifications are up  

o 68% completion last month 

o 75% completion this month 

Introduction of the SouthTech Academy SAC Consent Agenda – None. 

26. Poll SAC for Items to be Pulled from the SouthTech Academy SAC Consent Agenda for Comment or 

Questions – N/A  

27. Approval of SouthTech Academy SAC Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled – N/A   

28. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 

       29. South Tech Preparatory Academy:       

School Improvement Steering Committee (SISC) Report – Ayesha Edmond, Chairperson 

● Student Progression Plan soon 

● Increase parental participation 

● Improve proficiency in science and math 

Introduction of the SouthTech Preparatory Academy SAC Consent Agenda – None. 

 30. Poll SAC for Items to be Pulled from the STPA SAC Consent Agenda for Comment or Questions – N/A 

31. Approval of STPA SAC Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled – N/A 

32. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 

33. Board Comments 

Ms. Heinz stated that she would like to meet with Mrs. Turenne to review the gap analysis for enrollment in 

each academy. Ms. Nicolini expressed her concern for the students that are currently failing, especially those 

that are enrolled in virtual learning. All board members stated how happy they are to have Carla Lovett on the 

team as STS’s new Executive Director, as well as Christina Grenga as a new member of the Governing Board. 

They also reflected on all of the amazing success that STS has had even in the face of a pandemic. 

34. Motion to Adjourn 

Introduced by James Notter 

Time: 8:37 pm 



Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 

 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve the donations for the period from December 9, 2020 to 

January 31, 2021. 

 

Summary Information: 

 

In following Board Policies 6.104 and 6.1041, these donations are brought forth for Board 

approval. 

 

Attachments:  Donations  

 

 

 

Presented By: 

 

Carla Lovett, Executive Director 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

The financial impact for this item varies depending on the various items donated.   

 
 

Agenda Item 

A-1 
Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 



First Name Last Name Business Date Contribution

Esther Hartman

Dr. Herbert Mendelson 

Memorial Scholarship 1/13/21 $2500 Student Scholarship 

Mario Arenas Home Depot 1/27/21

$200 of Paint for Film & TV Production 

Academy Classrooms

First Name Last Name Business Date Contribution

Edward Telman 12/9/20

1999 Lincoln Continental 4 door 

vehicle S# 1LNHM97V4XY653435

South Tech Academy Donations 

For The Governing Board

Non Cash Donations

Donations



Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 

 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous month    

 

 

Summary Information: 

 

This item covers Personnel actions for the previous month, including any resignations, 

terminations, and new hires.  

 

Attachments: Personnel Actions List 

 

 

Presented By: 

 

Jennifer Melillo, Human Resource Manager 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 
 

Agenda Item 

B-1 
Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 



 
 
 
 

SOUTH TECH ACADEMY 
PERSONNEL ACTIONS 

February 2021 
                 

 
 

Personnel Action      Employee Name           Position                    Effective Date 
  

 
New Hires/ Transfers 
          
Resignations/Terminations 
Resignation: 
         Michelle Brock              Science Instructor                1/29/2021 
         Julius Guerra     Information Technology Instructor  1/29/2021 
         Darnley FanFan              Guidance Secretary              1/25/2021 
   
          
Retirement/Leave of Absence 
NONE 



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for month 
ending December 31, 2020 required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The State statutes and the Palm Beach County School District require charter schools to provide 
financial statements on a monthly basis in the format that School Districts are required to follow.  
This format is  prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
The monthly statements include: 

1. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual 
2. The combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  
3. A Combined Balance Sheet – All Fund Types 

 
Quarterly, a Statement of Net Assets is also required.  This is provided in March, June, 
September and December. 
 
 
Attachments:  Monthly Financial Statements  
 
Presented By: 
 
Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 
Ginger DeKalb, Accounting Manager 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
C-1 

Board Meeting 
February 11, 2021 



 

Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 2,598,428$      -$                 -$                 -$                 2,598,428$      

Investments 1160 -                   

Grant receivables 1130 -                   -                   

Other current assets 12XX 56,761             56,761             

Deposits 1210 34,232             -                   34,232             

Due from other funds 1140 17,283             17,283             

Other long-term assets 1400 -                   -                   

 

Total Assets 2,706,704$      -$                 -$                 -$                 2,706,704$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE  

Liabilities  

Accounts payable 2120 138,415$         -$                 -$                 -$                 138,415$         

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 427,775           427,775           

Deferred revenue 2410 -                   -                   

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                   

Lease payable 2315 -                   

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX 46,271             46,271             

Total Liabilities 612,461           -                   -                   -                   612,461           

 

Fund Balance  

Nonspendable 2710 90,993             90,993             

Restricted 2720 -                   

Committed 2730 -                   

Assigned 2740 153,923           153,923           

Unassigned 2750 1,849,327        1,849,327        

 

Total Fund Balance 2,094,243        -                   -                   -                   2,094,243        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 2,706,704$      -$                 -$                 -$                 2,706,704$      

 

 

 

 

 

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended December 31, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

  December 31, 2020   

South Tech Academy with MSID Number 1571

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 1,165        

FTE Actual 1,229        105% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                   -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -                    %

    Federal through state and local 3200 -                    340,361            717,252            47%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 618,068             3,483,928         7,042,206         49%

    Capital outlay 3397 10,338               62,289              129,678            48%

    Class size reduction 3355 87,000               522,000            1,094,583         48%

    School recognition 3361 -                     -                    -                    

    Other state revenue 33XX -                     23,058              367,280            6%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 218                    1,166                5,000                23%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413 #

    Other local revenue 34XX 4,450                 196,844            220,000            89%

Total Revenues 720,074             4,289,285         8,858,747         48% -                    340,361            717,252            47%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 383,957             2,204,643         4,857,233         45% 34,285              394,294            459,041            86%

Instructional support services 6000 60,737               294,042            689,246            43% 12,504              95,908              258,211            37%

Board 7100 9,130                 55,648              109,076            51%

General administration 7200 11,425               61,563              171,488            36%

School administration 7300 55,966               353,128            808,150            44%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 -                     90,224              -                    

Fiscal services 7500 18,661               105,092            209,168            50%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 11,795               76,122              197,946            38%

Pupil transportation services 7800 24,490               99,844              675,000            15% 875                   1,400                -                    

Operation of plant 7900 58,945               287,411            769,459            37% 5,351                45,268              -                    

Maintenance of plant 8100 7,094                 35,249              51,620              68%

Administrative technology services 8200 6,578                 43,546              77,924              56%

Community services 9100 14,610               62,961              210,000            30%

Debt service 9200 1,018                 5,430                -                    

Total Expenditures 664,406             3,774,903         8,826,310         43% 53,015              536,870            717,252            75%

` 55,668               514,382            32,437              (53,015)             (196,509)           -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 -                     -                    -                    53,015              196,509            

Transfers out 9700 (53,015)              (196,509)           -                    -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (53,015)              (196,509)           -                    53,015              196,509            -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,653                 317,873            32,437              -                    -                    

Fund balances, beginning 2,091,590          1,814,883         2,026,074         90%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance -                     (38,513)             

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 2,091,590          1,776,370         2,026,074         88% -                    -                    -                    

Fund Balances, Ending 2,094,243$        2,094,243$       2,058,511$       102% -$                  -$                  -                    %

For the Month Ended December 31, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

South Tech Academy with MSID Number (1571)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ Quarter 

Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % -                    -                    -                    %

-                    340,361            717,252            47%

 

618,068            3,483,928         7,042,206         49%

10,338              62,289              129,678            48%

87,000              522,000            1,094,583         48%

-                    -                    -                    

-                    23,058              367,280            6%

218                   1,166                5,000                23%

-                    -                    -                    

4,450                196,844            220,000            89%

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    720,074            4,629,646         9,575,999         48%

418,242            2,598,937         5,316,274         49%

73,241              389,950            947,457            41%

9,130                55,648              109,076            51%

11,425              61,563              171,488            36%

55,966              353,128            808,150            44%

-                    90,224              -                    

18,661              105,092            209,168            50%

-                    -                    -                    

11,795              76,122              197,946            38%

25,365              101,244            675,000            15%

-                    -                    -                    64,296              332,679            769,459            43%

7,094                35,249              51,620              68%

6,578                43,546              77,924              56%

14,610              62,961              210,000            30%

1,018                5,430                -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    717,421            4,311,773         9,543,562         45%

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,653                317,873            32,437              

53,015              196,509            -                    

-                    -                    (53,015)             (196,509)           -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    2,653                317,873            32,437              

2,091,590         1,814,883         2,026,074         90%

-                    (38,513)             -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,091,590         1,776,370         2,026,074         88%

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % 2,094,243         2,094,243         2,058,511         102%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC Balance 

Sheet and Profit & Loss Report for month ending December 31, 2020. 

 

Summary Information: 

 

Per the Articles of Incorporation, SouthTech Schools Holdings, LLC shall be Member Managed 

within the meaning of Section 605.0407, Florida Statutes, and have a single member 

consisting of SOUTH TECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC., a Florida nonprofit corporation 

("the Member"). 

 

Attachments:  STSH Balance Sheet 

             STSH Profit & Loss Report 

 

Presented By: 

 

Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 

Ginger DeKalb, Accounting Manager 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

There is no financial impact for this item. 

 
 

Agenda Item 

C-2 
 

Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 









Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve the proposed salary increases. 

 

Summary Information: 

➢ Raise all classroom teachers to a minimum salary of $47,500. 

 

➢ Provide a raise in the amount of $1,350 to all teachers, administrators and support 

staff who were employed prior to July 1, 2020 and are currently employed as of 

February 28, 2021 

 

➢ Average of 2.6% raise for teachers. 

 

 

The State has allocated $183,956 for Teacher Salary Increase Allocations to provide a minimum 

teacher base salary of $47,500.  The remaining funds after increasing teachers to the minimum 

base salary are allocated to provide raises for classroom teachers whose increase to $47,500 did 

not result in a 2% raise. These funds are to be allocated to classroom teachers that have been 

employed for at least one year. 

 

SouthTech Academy’s TSIA plan includes twenty-four teachers increased to the $47,500 

minimum base salary and forty-four teachers will receive a longevity increase of $1,350 totaling 

the allocation. 

 

The TSIA plan does not include any increases for non-classroom employees. A longevity 

increase of $1,350 for all other employees who have been employed by SouthTech Academy for 

one year would follow past salary increase practices. 

 

Due to COVID and other personnel changes, payroll expenses are lower than projected on the 

SY21 Budget. 

 

Presented By: 

 

Carla Lovett, Executive Director 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

The proposed payroll increases result in $72,110 over the original SY21 budget.  

The $183,956 TSIA funding is not in the original SY21 budget.  

Net increase of $111,845.77 to the original SY21 Budget. 

Agenda Item 

C-3 
 

Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021  

 



 



Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve a contract with MAC Express Cleaning Services for 

cleaning services at SouthTech Academy. 

 

Summary Information: 

 

A Request for Proposal was distributed on January 12, 2021 for Janitorial Cleaning Services for 

SouthTech Academy.  Eight companies submitted proposals by the January 26, 2021 due date. 

 

Another company submitted the lowest bid, however this company provided cleaning services 

for SouthTech Academy in the past and their contract was terminated due to inadequate service 

within 90 days. 

 

MAC Express Cleaning Services has been providing good quality custodial services at 

SouthTech Academy for the past three years and is responsive to all issues if they arise. It is an 

advantage to continue the service with this established provider.  Their proposal is $18,565 per 

month. 

 

Presented By: 

 

Carla Lovett, Executive Director 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

Increase of $16,820 to the SY21 budget. 

 

Agenda Item 

C-4 
 

Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021  

 















Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 

 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve the donations for the period from January 1, 2021 to 

January 31, 2021. 

 

Summary Information: 

 

In following Board Policies 6.104 and 6.1041, these donations are brought forth for Board 

approval. 

 

Attachments:  Donations  

 

 

 

Presented By: 

 

Carla Lovett, Executive Director 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

The financial impact for this item varies depending on the various items donated.   

 
 

Agenda Item 

PA-1 
Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 



First Name Last Name Business Date Contribution

David Burke

Covery's Community 

Healthcare Foundation 1/16/21

$2,500 - Start Up Food Bank for Student & 

Families

First Name Last Name Business Date Contribution

South Tech Preparatory Academy Donations 

For The Governing Board

Non Cash Donations

Donations



Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 

 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous month    

 

 

Summary Information: 

 

This item covers Personnel actions for the previous month, including any resignations, 

terminations, and new hires.  

 

Attachments: Personnel Actions List 

 

 

Presented By: 

 

Jennifer Melillo, Human Resource Manager 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 
 

Agenda Item 

PB-1 
Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 



 

 

 

 

SOUTH TECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY 

PERSONNEL ACTIONS 

                       February 2021 

 

 

Personnel Action      Employee Name           Position                    Effective Date 

  

 

New Hires/ Transfers 

                              

Resignations/Terminations 

Resignation: 

   Jaime Settle    Instructor   12/18/2020 

       

 

  

 

Retirement/Leave of Absence 

NONE  



Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for month 

ending December 31, 2020 required by the Sponsor. 

 

Summary Information: 

 

The State statutes and the Palm Beach County School District require charter schools to provide 

financial statements on a monthly basis in the format that School Districts are required to follow.  

This format is  prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 

The monthly statements include: 

1. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual 

2. The combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  

3. A Combined Balance Sheet – All Fund Types 

 

Quarterly, a Statement of Net Assets is also required.  This is provided in March, June, 

September and December. 

 

 

Attachments:  Monthly Financial Statements  

 

Presented By: 

 

Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 

Ginger DeKalb, Accounting Manager 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

There is no financial impact for this item. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 

PC-1 

 
 

Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 



Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 863,007$         -$                 -$                 -$                 863,007$         

Investments 1160 -                   

Grant receivables 1130 25,573             25,573             

Other current assets 12XX 7,588               7,588               

Deposits 1210 87,400             87,400             

Due from other funds 1140 -                   

Other long-term assets 1400 -                   

Total Assets 983,568$         -$                 -$                 -$                 983,568$         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2120 51,369$           -$                 -$                 -$                 51,369$           

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 30,670             30,670             

Deferred revenue 2410 -                   

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                   

Lease payable 2315 -                   

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX 18,488             18,488             

Total Liabilities 100,527           -                   -                   -                   100,527           

Fund Balance

Nonspendable 2710 94,988             94,988             

Restricted 2720 -                   

Committed 2730 -                   

Assigned 2740 118,840           118,840           

Unassigned 2750 669,213           669,213           

Total Fund Balance 883,041           -                   -                   -                   883,041           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 983,568$         -$                 -$                 -$                 983,568$         

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended December 31, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

  December 31, 2020   

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number 3441

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 535

FTE Actual 526 98% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -                    %

    Federal through state and local 3200 -                    130,094            268,844            48%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 273,040            1,646,232         3,225,366         51%

    Capital outlay 3397 -                    

    Class size reduction 3355 41,132              246,792            498,505            50%

    School recognition 3361

    Other state revenue 33XX -                    7,040                37,770              19%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 68                     350                   1,100                32%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413

    Other local revenue 34XX 3,588                34,933              334,429            10%

Total Revenues 317,828            1,935,347         4,097,170         47% -                    130,094            268,844            48%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 123,652            647,001            1,795,488         36% 16,060              152,183            188,191            81%

Instructional support services 6000 33,468              160,800            263,908            61% 4,162                44,533              80,653              55%

Board 7100 2,661                28,045              33,082              85%

General administration 7200 12,232              68,723              145,163            47%

School administration 7300 32,579              188,240            422,951            45%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 -                    -                    -                    

Fiscal services 7500 8,078                45,130              92,483              49%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 4,845                31,152              61,357              51%

Pupil transportation services 7800 20,000              74,194              315,000            24%

Operation of plant 7900 56,975              393,862            1,000,172         39% 1,428                14,360              -                    

Maintenance of plant 8100 2,890                23,343              55,523              42%

Administrative technology services 8200 5,129                32,658              65,316              50%

Community services 9100 542                   33,706              100,000            34%

Debt service 9200

Total Expenditures 303,051            1,726,854         4,350,443         40% 21,650              211,076            268,844            79%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 14,777              208,493            (253,273)           -82% (21,650)             (80,982)             -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 23,675              142,405            361,000            21,650              80,982              

Transfers out 9700 (21,650)             (80,982)             -                    -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,025                61,423              361,000            17% 21,650              80,982              -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 16,802              269,916            107,727            -                    -                    -                    

Fund balances, beginning 866,239            614,559            724,704            85%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance -                    (1,434)               

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 866,239            613,125            724,704            85% -                    -                    -                    

Fund Balances, Ending 883,041$          883,041$          832,431            106% -$                  -$                  -                    %

For the Month Ended December 31, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2021

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number (3441)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ Quarter 

Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % -                    -                    -                    %

-                    130,094            268,844            48%

273,040            1,646,232         3,225,366         51%

23,675              142,405            264,784            54% 23,675              142,405            264,784            54%

41,132              246,792            498,505            50%

-                    -                    -                    

-                    7,040                37,770              19%

68                     350                   1,100                32%

% -                    -                    -                    

3,588                34,933              334,429            10%

-                    -                    -                    23,675              142,405            264,784            54% 341,503            2,207,846         4,630,798         48%

139,712            799,184            1,983,679         40%

37,630              205,333            344,561            60%

2,661                28,045              33,082              85%

12,232              68,723              145,163            47%

32,579              188,240            422,951            45%

-                    -                    -                    

8,078                45,130              92,483              49%

-                    -                    -                    

4,845                31,152              61,357              51%

 20,000              74,194              315,000            24%

58,403              408,222            1,000,172         41%

2,890                23,343              55,523              42%

5,129                32,658              65,316              50%

542                   33,706              100,000            34%

-                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    324,701            1,937,930         4,619,288         42%

-                    -                    -                    23,675              142,405            264,784            54% 16,802              269,916            11,511              2345%

45,325              223,387            361,000             

(23,675)             (142,405)           (361,000)           (45,325)             (223,387)           (361,000)            

-                    -                    -                    (23,675)             (142,405)           (361,000)           -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    16,802              269,916            11,511               

866,239            614,559            724,704            85%

-                    (1,434)               -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    866,239            613,125            724,704            85%

-$                  -$                  -$                  % -$                  -$                  -$                  % 883,041$          883,041$          736,215$          120%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



Governing Board of Directors 

SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

Motion: 

 

I recommend that the Board approve the proposed salary increases. 

 

Summary Information: 

➢ Raise all classroom teachers to a minimum salary of $47,500. 

 

➢ Provide a raise in the amount of $1,350 to all teachers, administrators and support 

staff who were employed prior to July 1, 2020 and are currently employed as of 

February 28, 2021 

 

➢ Average of 2.6% raise for teachers. 

 

The State has allocated $87,175 for Teacher Salary Increase Allocations to provide a minimum 

teacher base salary of $47,500.  The remaining funds after increasing teachers to the minimum 

base salary are allocated to provide raises for classroom teachers whose increase to $47,500 did 

not result in a 2% raise. These funds are to be allocated to classroom teachers that have been 

employed for at least one year. 

 

SouthTech Preparatory Academy’s TSIA plan includes thirteen teachers increased to the $47,500 

minimum base salary and eleven teachers will receive a longevity increase of $1,252 totaling the 

allocation. 

 

The TSIA plan does not include any increases for non-classroom employees and a lower 

longevity increase due to funding.. A longevity increase of $1,350 for all employees who have 

been employed by SouthTech Preparatory Academy for one year would follow past salary 

increase practices for SouthTech Schools.. 

 

Due to COVID and other personnel changes, payroll expenses are lower than projected on the 

SY21 Budget. 

 

 

Presented By: 

 

Carla Lovett, Executive Director 

  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

The proposed payroll increases result in savings of $3,732 of the original SY21 budget.  

The $87,175 TSIA funding is not in the original SY21 budget.  

Net increase of $90,906 to the original SY21 Budget. 

Agenda Item 

PC-2 
 

Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 



 


	Cover Sheet Board Member Packet 2-11-2021
	STA-STPA Governing Board Agenda 2.11.21
	STA-STPA-STSC Governing Board Minutes 1-14-21
	Item A-1 2-11-2021 STA Donations
	Item A-1 Backup BOARD DONATIONS JAN21 (1)
	Item B-1 2-11-2021 STA Personnel
	Item B-1 Backup Personnel Actions- STA 2-2021
	Item C-1 2-11-2021 STA Monthly Fiancial Statements December 31, 2020
	Item C-1 Backup South Tech (1571) Financial Statements December 2020
	Item C-2 2-11-2021 STSH Balance Sheet and P&L December 31, 2020
	Item C-2 Backup STSH Balance Sheet Dec20
	Item C-2 Backup STSH Profit & Loss YTD Dec20
	Item C-3 2-11-2021 Proposed Salary increases
	Item C-4 2-11-2021 STA Cleaning Contract
	Item C-4 Backup MAC Cleaning - not signed
	Item PA-1 2-11-2021 STPA Donations
	Item PA-1 Backup PREP BOARD DONATIONS JAN21
	Item PB-1 2-11-2021 STPA Personnel
	Item PB-1 Backup Personnel Actions- STP 2-2021
	Item PC-1 2-11-2021 STP Monthly Financial Statements December 31, 2020
	Item PC-1 Backup South Tech Prep (3441) Financial Statements December 2020
	Item PC-2 2-11-2021 Proposed Salary increases

